* - - - . L]

Earth Negotiations Bulletin

. r * L) L) L] L] L] L] L] . . » * *

A Reporting Sem’lce for Emzronmenr and Development Negotiafions

Vol. 12 No. 47

Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development

Tuesday, 29 July 1997

HIGHLIGHTS FROM THE MEETINGS OF THE
FCCC SUBSIDIARY BODIES
28 JULY 1997

Thesixth session of the Subsidiary Body for Scientific and
Technological Advice (SBSTA) discussed thedivision of labor
between SBSTA and the Subsidiary Body for Implementation
(SBI) and methodol ogical issues. SBI began consideration of the
Programme Budget for 1998-99. The Ad Hoc Group on Article 13
discussed acompilation text on functionsand proceduresfor any
multilateral consultative mechanism (MCP). Informal groups met
to hear Secretariat presentations on methodol ogical issuesand the
Programme Budget.

SUBSIDIARY BODY FOR SCIENTIFIC AND
TECHNOLOGICAL ADVICE

SBSTA Chair Tibor Fargaro (Hungary) highlighted theinterest
in enhancing commitments under the FCCC asexpressed at the UN
General Assembly Special Session (UNGASS). Henoted that
Burundi had recently becomean FCCC Party and said the Ukraine
and Singaporewould soon do likewise. FCCC Executive Secretary
Michael Zammit-Cutajar noted that while much attention has
focused onthe AGBM, the other subsidiary bodieswould also
make positive contributionsto COP-3. Each subsidiary body
should striveto produce draft decisionsthat can be easily adopted
at COP-3. Heexpressed concern at the slow pace of submission of
national communications, which are abasic commitment and
affect the Secretariat’ sability to compileand synthesizeinforma-
tion.

Ontheadoption of theagenda, TANZANIA, on behalf of the
G-77/CHINA, reserved its position on addressing methodol ogical
issuesrelated to joint implementation asaseparateissue. CHINA
proposed bracketing theitem. The USrequested an expl anation of
thisaction. The Chair proposed including thisitem under the
general discussion on activitiesimplementedjointly. Delegates
agreed to consider theitem under the discussion on methodol ogical
issues.

Ontheelection of officers, Soobaraj Sok Appadu (Mauritius)
waselected Vice-Chair and Alvaro Jose Rodriguez Gémez
(Colombia) as Rapporteur. On the organization of work, the Chair
proposed establishing informal groupsto consider the division of
labor between SBSTA and SBI. He al so proposed establishing a
group on methodol ogical issues, to be chaired by Harald Dovland
(Norway) and SBSTA Vice-Chair Appadu. Thirty-four delegations
expressed interest in participating.

Division of Labor: The Secretariat introduced the document
ondivision of labor (FCCC/SB/1997/2). The document proposes,
inter alia, that only one subsidiary body addressany particular
issueand, if necessary, the other body would consider certain
aspectsof theissue. LUXEMBOURG, on behalf of the EU, along
with JAPAN, supported the proposed approach and, with SWIT-
ERLAND, emphasized the need for education and public aware-
ness. JAPAN noted that the division of labor for national
communicationsand AlJneedsclarification. The US noted that
SBSTA should only refine unclear areasrather than redefine deci-
sions.

Somedelegations, including MALAY SIA, SAUDI ARABIA
and IRAN emphasized theimportance of technology transfer to
devel oping countries and the need for more detailed discussions.
Some disagreed with the document’ sproposal that SBI only
addresstechnology transfer “at somepointinthefuture.”
CANADA noted that someelementsare appropriateto SBSTA's
expertise, while othersfall outsidethat, such asintellectual prop-
erty rights, financial mechanismsand therole of the private sector.
Aninformal group will consider theissue.

Methodological Issues: The Chair opened discussion on meth-
odological issuesand financing by noting that aninformal group
would also meet in conjunction with SBSTA. Heurged delegates
tolimit their discussion to general comments on the documents
(FCCC/SB/1997/INF.2, FCCC/SBI/1997/10 and FCCC/SB/1997/
INF.1) and leave detailed discoursefor theinformal discussions.
TheEU, the USand JAPAN stated that the documentswere
reasonable and useful. However, each group stated reservations
and agreed to participateininformal discussions. The EU and the
USlooked forward to more discussion concerning the budget and
questioned how funding should be allocated to different bodies.
MALAY SIA noted theimportance of methodol ogical issuesand
called for anincreasein the budget. CHINA called for thework to
beimplemented on aregional basisand stressed that thisshould be
apriority task.

Inthe afternoon, the Chair called for comments on methodol og-
ical issuesrelated to crediting under prospectivejoint implementa
tion. The US and the EU supported immediate discussion of this
matter and said that joint implementation would be limited without
resolving theissue of credits. The G-77/CHINA andthe RUSSIAN
FEDERATION noted that it was prematureto talk about crediting.
They emphasized that joint implementationisstill initspilot
phase, with few projectsand few countriesinvolved. NORWAY
emphasized that theissue of creditingiscomplex and addressing
methodol ogy aone may not be beneficial. They called for abroad
examination of theissue before the specifics of methodology are
considered.

The Chair called for acompromise and suggested postponing
discussion of crediting until early next year in order to await the
political deliberationsthat will take placeat AGBM. CANADA
noted that each COPisresponsiblefor thereview of pilot projects
and was concerned that theissue of crediting wasbeing ignored.
TheChair called onthe US, NORWAY, CANADA and CHINA to
draft acompromisetext for considerationin Plenary on
Wednesday, 30 July.

National Communications: The Secretariat introduced docu-
ments on communicationsfrom Annex | Parties (FCCC/SB/1997/
5) and inventory and projection data (FCCC/SB/1997/6), which
delegates noted without discussion. On non-Annex | Parties, dele-
gatesagreed to await the outcome of SBI deliberations, whichwill
address assi stance.

Activities Implemented Jointly: The Secretariat introduced a
document on activitiesimplemented jointly (A1J) under the pilot
phase (FCCC/SBSTA/1997/INF.2), which containsalist of
projectsthat have been accepted, approved or endorsed by the
designated national authorities.

Thisissueof the Earth NegotiationsBulletin <enb@iisd.org> iswritten and edited by PaolaBettelli <paobe@sprynet.com>, Chad Carpenter, LL.M. <chadc@iisd.org>, Peter
Doran <PF.Doran@ulst.ac.uk> and Benjamin Simmons <bls23@col umbia.edu>. The Editor isPamelaChasek, Ph.D. <pam@iisd.org> and the Managing Editor isLangston
James Kimo Goree VI <kimo@iisd.org>.The sustaining donors of the Bulletin are the Netherlands Ministry for Devel opment Cooperation and the Government of Canada.
General support for the Bulletin during 1997 is provided by the Department for International Development (DID) of the United Kingdom, the Ministry of Foreign Affairs of
Denmark, the European Community (DG-XI), the German Ministry of Environment, Nature Conservation and Nuclear Safety, the Ministries of Environment and Foreign
Affairsof Austria, the Ministry of Environment of Sweden, the Swiss Federal Office of the Environment, and UNDP. Specific funding for coverage of this meeting has been
provided by the Ministry of Foreign Affairs of Norway. The ENB can be contacted at tel: +1-212-644-0204; fax: +1-212-644-0206. |1SD can be contacted at 161 Portage
Avenue East, 6th Floor, Winnipeg, ManitobaR3B 0Y 4, Canada; tel: +1-204-958-7700; fax: +1-204-958-7710. The opinionsexpressed in the Earth Negotiations Bulletin are
those of the authors and do not necessarily reflect the views of 11SD and other funders. Excerpts from the Earth Negotiations Bulletin may be used in other publicationsonly
with appropriatecitation. Electronic versionsof the ENB are sent to e-mail distribution listsand can befound on the LinkagesWWW-server at <http://www.iisd.ca/linkages/.




Vol. 12, No. 47 - 28 July 1997

Page 2

TheEU called for establishment of acredible
base linethat would reflect what would have happenedinthe
absence of an AlJproject. The cal culation of the benefits should be
transparent and include only those | eading to genuine greenhouse
gas (GHG) reductions. She noted that further work wasrequired on
technol ogy-specific baselinesand third party verification. TheUS
noted that aconsiderable amount of progresson practical options
can beidentified and highlighted several aspectsof criteriafor
assessing AlJ, such asmonitoring and verifying results, quantifica-
tion of project costsand measuring emission benefits. He under-
scored the need to examinelinks between these issuesand credits.
He, with CANADA, said the Secretariat’ sforthcoming synthesis
document should begin to draw conclusionsfrom AlJprojects.
NORWAY highlighted national experiencein AlJand noted
effortsto develop aportfolio of projectswith aview to balancing
sectorsand technologies. COSTA RICA said thewillingnessto pay
for GHG reductionsthrough AlJislinked to financing and stressed
theneed for crediting.

ZIMBABWE, CHINA, KUWAIT and MALAY SIA cautioned
against forming premature conclusionson AlJbased on the pilot
phase. ZIMBABWE and CHINA said it would not be possibleto
assessthe effectiveness of AlJby 2000. SAUDI ARABIA said
many activitieshad beeninitiated to reaffirm theideaof AlJand
noted that project approval by the host government isnot asign of
success because some countrieslack the capacity to judge benefits.
SAMOA noted that only twelve Parties, two from Annex |, were
currently involvedin AlJactivities. While significant opportunities
for AlJexist worldwide, few countriesinthe AsiaPacific region
have an understanding of thisissue.

Methodologies Group: Aninformal group on methodological
issues met in the evening and heard a presentation by the Secre-
tariat onits Methodological Work Programme. Delegatesgave
general viewsand asked questions, to which the Secretariat will
provide answersat the group’ snext meeting. Delegateswill also
hear presentationsfromintergovernmental organizationsontheir
activities. Delegateswill then begin drafting conclusions.

SUBSIDIARY BODY ON IMPLEMENTATION

Chair Mohamed Ould El Ghaouth (Mauritania) convened SBI-
6. Hereminded del egatesthat the SBI would not meet at COP-3
and must finalize anumber of recommendationsat SBI-6 and SBI-
7in October. Onthe adoption of the agenda (FCCC/SBI/1997/7),
heinvited the Philippinesto ask colleaguesif they werealso
prepared for apreliminary exchange of viewson proposalsfor
amendmentsto the FCCC and itsannexes (FCCC/SBI/1997/11). If
not, the proposalswill go directly to COP-3. SAUDI ARABIA,
supported by KUWAIT, sought deletion of Agendaltem9on
mattersarising from UNGASS. He said therewaslittle of
substance from UNGA SSto send to COP-3. The Chair noted that
theitemwassimply for information.

On administrative and financial matters, said the budget will
haveto be adopted at the current session of the SBI. FCCC Execu-
tive Secretary Zammit-Cutajar i ntroduced documentation onthe
programme budget for theyears 1998-1999 (FCCC/SBI/1997/10,
INF.1, and INF.2). Hea so drew attention to aninformal document
on the status of paymentsto the FCCC core budget and said the
cash flow situation continued to warrant concern. He said the level
of initial budget estimates had been revised downwards but would
remain abovethe 1997 level.

He also discussed aproposal to maintain apost-Kyoto contin-
gency fund for the management of any unanticipated processto
emerge from COP-3. On the Participation Fund, hewarned that
somelinkage may beintroduced between Parties’ applicationsfor
funding and the status of their contributions.

LUXEMBOURG, for the EU, introduced aformal statement on
the programme budget for 1998-1999, noting continuing concern at
thetotal amount of the budget proposals presented by the secre-
tariat, and aproposed 50% increase overall. The statement
addressed: tasksrequested by SBSTA whereadeficit appearsinthe
balance between these and other secretariat activities, conference
servicing; any post-Kyoto intergovernmental process; review of
overhead charges; volume of documentation; budgeting for in-

depth reviews of national communi cations; remuneration of senior
posts; the budget structure; and Convention Trust Funds. The EU
proposed acontact group to take thework on the budget forward.

AD HOC GROUP ON ARTICLE 13

Chair Patrick Szell (UK) openedthelast AG13 meeting before
COP3, recalling that at AG13-4 some progress had been made,
mainly dueto thedecision that AG13 should not aim to concludeits
work before COP-4, pending adecision by the AGBM onthe
nature of the complianceregime. He noted other points of conver-
genceand divergenceat AG13-4.

The Chair called attention to the draft Multilateral Consultative
Process(MCP) (FCCC/AG13/1997/2, Annex I1) containing
proposalson functionsand procedureswith anumber of bracketed
references. Heindicated that additional submissionsby Switzer-
land and Uzbekistan had been circulated. (FCCC/AG13/1 997/
Misc.2) The Agendawas adopted (FCCC/AG13/1997/2).

Temporary accreditation of NGOsand intergovernmental
organi zationswas agreed pending adecision by COP-3. On organi-
zation of work of future sessions, the Chair referred partiestoa
chart contained in document FCCC/AG13/1997/3.

The Chair requested that del egations circulate amendmentson
thedraft MCPimmediately to allow for their consideration over-
night. The EU circul atedits proposals. Chair Szell outlined adraft
decision he had prepared for COP-3 requesting provision for two
moresessionsof the AG13, each lasting six half-days, withtheaim
of completingwork by COP-4. Meeting thetarget datewould not
be guaranteed.

Onthe scope and elements of an MCP, Chair Szell invited
commentson the ordering of paragraphsinthe M CP compilation
text. The EU said the opening paragraph should refer to a* process”
asmandated by FCCC Article 13. Referenceto the establishment
of acommittee should follow later. The USwarned against getting
ahead of COP-3 and added that hewas ot in apositionto endorse
any courseof actionfor AG13. The Chair invited commentson the
first paragraph of the M CP compilation. Partiesdiscussed: the
introduction of areferenceto FCCC Article 13; whether the para-
graph should refer only to the establishment of acommittee ortoa
processwith asubsequent paragraph on acommittee, or both; the
question of whether such acommittee should be*“ standing” or “ad
hoc;” and whether acommittee should report directly to the COP or
tothe SBI.

IN THE CORRIDORS

Delegatesat aninformal budget discussion differed Monday
afternoon on theimplications of budgetary decisionsfor AGBM
and COP-3 deliberations. Some supported including fundsfor a
possible post-Kyoto processwithin aproposed contingency budget
or evenincluding thosefundsin the FCCC'’ score budget, while
others said the budget should not prejudge whether coming negoti-
ationswill establish such aprocess. Theneed for separately listing
fundsfor Annex 1 and non-Annex 1 Parties’ implementation was
also questioned, but anumber of delegationssaid thedistinctionin
Parties’ responsihilities should not be eliminated in the budget.
Several del egationsal so expressed concerns about the apparent
increasein staff and overall budget amount compared to 1997
figuresand requested further information on theseissuesfromthe
Secretariat.

THINGS TO LOOK FOR TODAY

SBIl and AG13: Both groupsare expected to meet from 10:00
am - 1:00 pm and from 3:00 - 6:00 pm. An SBI informal meeting on
thebudget may conveneinthe evening. Consult the Daily
Programme.

Division of Labor Group: Thegroup isexpected to meet from
11:00am- 1:00 pm and from 4:00 pm - 6:00 pmintheHaydn
Room.

Methodologies Group: The group isexpected to meet from
11:00 am - 1:00 pm and from 3:00 pm - 6:00 pm in the Koch Room.



